
CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

Planning Commission and Staff Seating 

  

MIKE STRONG 
Assistant Planning Director 

OWEN TUNNELL 

Principal Engineer 

STAN WEILER 
Commissioner 

MICHAEL COHEN 
Commissioner 

DON ROMO 
Vice-Chair 

JEFF WEBER 
Chairman 

JAMES MCNAIR 
Commissioner 

JOE GARCIA 
Commissioner 

JAMES SPANN 
Commissioner 

ADAM PHILLIPS 
Deputy City Attorney 

TY PAULSON 
Minutes Clerk 

AGENDA 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

201 North Broadway 

City Hall Council Chambers 
 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

August 8, 2017 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 7:00 p.m. 
 
B. FLAG SALUTE 
 
C. ROLL CALL:  
 
D. MINUTES: 07/11/17 
 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 The Brown Act provides an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the Planning Commission on any item of interest 

to the public before or during the Planning Commission's consideration of the item.  If you wish to speak regarding an agenda item, 
please fill out a speaker's slip and give it to the minutes clerk who will forward it to the chairman. 

 
Electronic Media:  Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be 
submitted to the Planning Division at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at which it is to be shown. 
 
The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system.  The media must be 
labeled with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact information for the 
person presenting the media. 
 
The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers.  City staff will 
queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak.  Materials shown to the Commission during the 
meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the City. 
 
The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content of electronic 
media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable to live presentations. 

 
 If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under "Oral Communications" which is listed at the 

beginning and end of the agenda.  All persons addressing the Planning Commission are asked to state their names for the public 
record. 
 
Availability of supplemental materials after agenda posting:  any supplemental writings or documents provided to the Planning 
Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning Division located at 201 N. 
Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council Chambers while the meeting is in session. 

 
 The City of Escondido recognizes its obligation to provide equal access to public services for individuals with disabilities.  Please 

contact the A.D.A. Coordinator, (760) 839-4643 with any requests for reasonable accommodation at least 24 hours prior to the 
meeting. 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  
The Planning Division is the coordinating division for the Planning Commission. 

For information, call (760) 839-4671.



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
E. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
 "Under State law, all items under Written Communications can have no action, and will be referred to 

the staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda." 
 
1. Future Neighborhood Meetings 
 
 
F. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
 "Under State law, all items under Oral Communications can have no action, and may be referred to 

the staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda." 
 
 This is the opportunity for members of the public to address the Commission on any item of business 

within the jurisdiction of the Commission. 
 
 
G. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 Please try to limit your testimony to 2-5 minutes. 
 

1. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT – PHG 15-0013 (Continue to date uncertain): 
 

REQUEST: A Conditional Use Permit to add one manufactured home site to the Casa Grande 
Mobile Home Park, to increase the total number of home sites within the park from 102 to 103.  The 
new home site would be 70’ deep by 46’ wide (3,220 SF), to accommodate a 1,344-SF home with an 
attached 672-SF carport for tandem parking.  The home site would be located near the center of the 
park, just south of an existing greenbelt area.  Access to this greenbelt would be maintained for park 
residents via an existing 14’-wide gravel walkway adjacent to the new home site, as well as existing 
narrower walkways between home sites 6 and 7 (on the east side of the greenbelt) and sites 17 and 
18 (on the west side).  New amenities, including a gazebo and dog run, would be added to the 
greenbelt for resident use.   
 

PROPERTY SIZE AND LOCATION:  The 11.13-acre mobile home park is located west of South Hale 
Avenue, north of Harmony Grove Road, and east of the Escondido Creek channel.  It is addressed as 
1001 South Hale Avenue (APN 232-372-07). 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL STATUS: The proposed project is categorically exempt from environmental 
review in conformance with CEQA Section 15303(a), New Construction or Conversion of Small 
Structures (construction of up to three single-family residences in an urbanized area). 

 
 APPLICANT:  Casa Grande Mobile Home Park 
 
 STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Continue to date uncertain 
 
 COMMISSION ACTION:  
 
 PROJECTED COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  
 

  



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 

Page 3 

  

 
 
 
 
 
2. MODIFICATION TO A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND VARIANCE – PHG 17-0006: 

 

REQUEST: A modification to a previously approved Conditional Use Permit for St. Mary’s Church 
and School to increase the number of preschool students from 45 up to 120.  The request includes the 
installation of a new 2,130 SF (60’ x 35.5’) single-story manufactured preschool building; new fenced 
playground areas and a playground shade canopy; accessory storage building; reconfigured parking 
spaces; and a six-foot-high vinyl fence along a section of the eastern property boundary to provide 
noise attenuation and additional screening of the new playground areas.  The new preschool building 
and playground areas would be located adjacent to the new preschool buildings in the area where the 
previous buildings were removed.  A Variance also is requested to allow a ten-foot rear-yard setback 
for the new buildings and canopy where the zoning code requires a minimum 20-foot rear-yard 
setback.  The zoning code recently was amended to limit certain structures to encroach into the rear-
yard setback where the previous code provisions would allow for no rear-yard setback for detached 
structures that met specific building code requirements for drainage and fire safety.  The proposal also 
includes the adoption of the environmental determination prepared for the project. 
 

PROPERTY SIZE AND LOCATION:  The approximately 8.3-acre church and school site is located on 
the northeastern corner of Broadway and 13th Avenue, addressed as 130 E. 13th Avenue, 1160 S. 
Broadway and 211 E. 11th Avenue (APNs 233-591-09, -21, -24, -44, -45 and -46).   
 

ENVIRONMENTAL STATUS: The proposed project is categorically exempt from environmental 
review in conformance with CEQA Section 15301 “Existing Facilities” and Section 15305 “Minor 
Alterations in Land Use Limitations. 

  
APPLICANT: St. Mary’s Church 

 
 STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 
 
 COMMISSION ACTION:  
 
 PROJECTED COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  

 
 

 
  



Planning Commission Agenda 
August 8, 2017 
Page 4 

 
 
 
 
 

H. CURRENT BUSINESS: 
 
 Note:  Current Business items are those which under state law and local ordinances do not require 

either public notice or public hearings. Public comments will be limited to a maximum time of three 
minutes per person. 

 
1. Request for a two-year Extension of Time for Case No. SUB 17-0012, a previously approved 

three-lot Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 2004-16), on a 1.2-acre parcel in the R-1-10 zone (Single-
family Residential, 10,000 SF minimum lot size).  The resulting net lot sizes would be 10,300 SF, 
12,603 SF, and 13,734 SF.  The project also includes an Administrative Adjustment (2005-03-AA) 
to reduce the required rear-yard setback on Parcel 2 by 25 percent, from 20 feet to 15 feet, for the 
existing single-family residence.  No changes to the project are proposed in conjunction with this 
extension. 

Location:  121 N. Tulip St. 
 
 
I. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
 "Under State law, all items under Oral Communications can have no action and may be referred to 

staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda." 
 
 This is the opportunity for members of the public to address the Commission on any item of business 

within the jurisdiction of the Commission. 
 
 
J. PLANNING COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



  Agenda Item No.: D 

Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
 

 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE  
ESCONDIDO PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
July 11, 2017 

 
The meeting of the Escondido Planning Commission Meeting was called to order at 
7:00 p.m. by Chairman Weber, in the City Council Chambers, 201 North Broadway, 
Escondido, California.  
  
Commissioners present: Jeffery Weber, Chairman; Don Romo, Vice-Chair; 
Michael Cohen, Commissioner; Joe Garcia, Commissioner; James McNair, 
Commissioner; James Spann, Commissioner; and Stan Weiler, Commissioner. 
  
Commissioners absent: None.   
 
Staff present: Bill Martin, Director of Community Development; Mike Strong, 
Assistant Planning Director; Owen Tunnell, Principal Engineer; Adam Phillips, 
Deputy City Attorney; and Ty Paulson, Minutes Clerk. 
 
MINUTES:  
 
Moved by Commissioner Spann seconded by Commissioner Garcia, to approve the 
minutes of the June 27, 2017, meeting. Motion carried unanimously. (7-0)  
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS – None.   
 
FUTURE NEIGHBORHOOD MEETINGS – None. 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: – None.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
1. ZONING CODE AMENDMENT – AZ 17-0002: 
 
REQUEST A proposal to modify Article 57 of the Escondido Zoning Code 
(Miscellaneous Use Restrictions) to add Sec. 33-1124, which would establish an 
expedited, cost-effective permitting process for Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 
to meet current State law requirements.  No development project is proposed.          
 
PROPERTY SIZE AND LOCATION:  Citywide 
 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Mike Strong, Assistant Planning Director, referenced the staff report and noted staff 
recommended approval of the proposed amendment to the Zoning Code, for the 
following reason: 1) The purpose of the amendment was to bring the Escondido 
Zoning Code into compliance with State law to promote the State’s goal to achieve 
a more sustainable transportation network. 

ACTION: 

Moved by Commissioner Spann, seconded by Chairman Weber, to approve staff’s 
recommendation. Motion carried unanimously. (7-0)   
 
 
CURRENT BUSINESS: 
 
1. Overview of CEQA Requirements 

 
The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is one of the most important 
state laws affecting local planning decisions. Mike Strong, Assistant Planning 
Director, referenced the staff report and provided a presentation on CEQA and 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) requirements.  
 
Discussion ensued regarding the timing and costs associated with an EIR.  
 
ORAL COMMUNATIONS: None.   
 
PLANNING COMMISSIONERS:  No comments.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Chairman Weber adjourned the meeting at 7:21 p.m. The next meeting was 
scheduled for August 8, 2017, at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers, 201 North 
Broadway, Escondido, California.  
 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________ 
Mike Strong, Secretary to the Escondido  Ty Paulson, Minutes Clerk 
Planning Commission 













































































 

 Agenda Item No.: H.1 
Date:  August 8, 2017    

 
 

CASE NUMBER:    SUB 17-0012  
 
APPLICANT:  Phoung Kim Khuu 
 
LOCATION: On the western side of Tulip Street, south of W. Valley Parkway, addressed 

as 121 N. Tulip Street 
 
TYPE OF PROJECT: Extension of Time for a Previously Approved Tentative Parcel Map and 

Conditional Use Permit 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A request for a two-year Extension of Time for a previously approved three-

lot Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 2004-16), on a 1.2-acre parcel in the R-1-
10 zone (Single-family Residential, 10,000 SF minimum lot size).  The 
resulting net lot sizes would be 10,300 SF, 12,603 SF, and 13,734 SF.  The 
project also includes an Administrative Adjustment (2005-03-AA) to reduce 
the required rear-yard setback on Parcel 2 by 25 percent, from 20 feet to 
15 feet, for the existing single-family residence.  No changes to the project 
are proposed in conjunction with this extension.      

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of extension for two (2) additional years. 
 
GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION: Suburban (up to 3.3 du/acre) 
 
ZONING: R-1-10 zone (Single-family Residential, 10,000 SF minimum lot size) 
 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF ISSUES:   A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM) for a three-lot subdivision at 
121 N. Tulip Street was reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on March 22, 2005.  An 
approved TPM does not divide the property, rather it sets the conditions under which a division can 
occur.  To actually divide the property an applicant must file a Parcel Map.  Except for special 
circumstances specified in the Government Code Section 66410 et. seq. (State Subdivision Map Act), a 
TPM expires after its approval unless extensions are granted by State law or the local agency.  The State 
Subdivision Map Act provides for six one-year discretionary extensions.  Under the terms of the City of 
Escondido Subdivision Ordinance, time extensions of an additional five years may be granted. 
 
The TPM was due to expire on November 14, 2008.  On April 7, 2008, the applicant filed a timely request 
for an additional three-year time extension, which extended the map for three years.  State legislative 
actions (SB 1185, AB 333, AB 208, and AB 116) automatically extended the Tentative Map an additional 
six years until April 2, 2017. 
 
On March 30, 2017, the applicant filed a request for an additional two-year extension.  Since the request 
was filed prior to the current expiration date, expiration of the map is suspended until a final decision is 
made regarding the extension request.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Case # SUB 17-0012 
PC Date August 8, 2017 
Page 3 

3 

 

  



Case # SUB 17-0012 
PC Date August 8, 2017 
Page 4 

4 

 

  



Case # SUB 17-0012 
PC Date August 8, 2017 
Page 5 

5 

 



Case # SUB 17-0012 
PC Date August 8, 2017 
Page 6 

6 

 

ANALYSIS 
 
 
General Plan Consistency 
 
The General Plan land-use designation on the site is Suburban which allows up to 3.3 dwelling units per acre, based 
on slope, with a minimum lot size of 10,000 SF.  The entire site is located within an area of less than 25% slopes 
and a total of 3.96 units are permitted.  The project density of 2.5 du/acre (3 du on 1.2 acres), and the resulting net 
lot sizes of 10,300 SF, 12,603 SF and 13,734 SF are consistent with the Suburban designation.   
 
Zoning Compliance  
 
The current zoning designation on the site is R-1-10, which requires a minimum lot size of 10,000 SF.  The approved 
Tentative Parcel Map consists of three lots ranging in net size from 10,300 SF to 13,734 SF, which is consistent 
with the Zoning Code requirement.  The proposed lots also are consistent with the existing zoning designation 
requirements for minimum width and frontage.  The requirement for average lot width in the R-1-10 zone is 80 feet, 
while the resulting lots each have a minimum lot width of 103 feet.  In the R-1 zone all lots, must abut a public street 
for a minimum of 35 feet, unless access by private road easement is provided, which required a Conditional Use 
Permit at the time of approval of the Tentative Parcel Map (the zoning code has since been amended to remove 
this requirement.)   The project includes a 28-foot-wide, paved private street to provide access to all three parcels.  
The design included a turnaround for emergency vehicles with parking available on one-side of the street.   No 
parking is permitted within the turnaround area.  In addition, each proposed lot has an adequate pad size to 
accommodate a single-family residence.  
 
An Administrative Adjustment was approved as part of the original project.  The adjustment reduces the rear yard 
setback of the existing single-family residence on Parcel 2 (which would remain on the site) by 25 percent, from 20 
feet to 15 feet.  The project would conform with all other required setbacks in the R-1-10 zone.  The Tentative Parcel 
Map meets the requirements of the R-1-10 zone.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL STATUS 
 
A Notice of Exemption was issued on March 7, 2005, in accordance with CEQA section 15315, Class 15, “Minor 
Land Divisions.”  There have been no substantial changes in the project or circumstances under which the project 
was undertaken which would require revisions to the environmental document. The Notice of Exemption, that was 
filed in 2005, adequately addresses the environmental impacts of the proposed development.   
 
Other Issues: 
 
All conditions of approval for recordation of a Parcel Map have been complied with, with the exception of some 
minor corrections to the improvement plans, and paying fees and posting bonds for improvements with the 
Engineering Division.  The Extension of Time is needed so that the Tentative Parcel Map does not expire while the 
applicant is working with the City to record it. 
 
The Planning, Engineering, and Fire Department have reviewed the Extension of Time request and determined that 
no additional conditions are needed in order to meet current requirements.  Since no additional conditions of 
approval for the project are required with the Extension of Time request, and the proposed project is in compliance 
with the zoning requirements and the previously approved Tentative Parcel Map, staff feels a two-year Extension 
of Time should be approved.    
 
 
  



Case # SUB 17-0012 
PC Date August 8, 2017 
Page 7 

7 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
Extension of Time, SUB 17-0012; TPM 2004-16 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Tentative Parcel Map 2004-16 

 
1. The Planning Commission finds that the extension request is reasonable, was filed within the time periods 

specified, and meets all requisite findings for extension of time on the Tentative Parcel Map. 
 
2. The proposed map with a density of 2.5 du/acre (3 lots on 1.2 acres) is consistent with the General Plan 

designation of Suburban, which permits a maximum of 3.3 du/acre, dependent on slope.  In addition, the 
proposed lot sizes of 10,300 SF, 12,603 SF and 13,734 SF meet the Suburban minimum of 10,000 SF. The 
design and improvements of the proposed subdivision are consistent with all requirements of the General Plan 
and the Zoning Code, since the proposed lot sizes and configuration are consistent with the Suburban 
designation and the R-1-10 zone requirements.  No changes in City policy have occurred that would conflict 
with the project.  This approval will extend the Tentative Parcel Map to April 2, 2019 
 

3. All findings of fact associated with the Planning Commission Resolution #5608, which approved Case No. 
TPM 2004-16, are incorporated herein as though fully set forth. 

  
4. The site is physically suited for the residential development proposed, as the site is currently zoned for single-

family residential development, and is bordered by vacant residential property and existing residential 
development of similar density and lot sizes.  All future grading will be in accordance with the requirements of 
the Grading Ordinance, and all access and utilities are available to the site. 

 
5. The design of the map and proposed improvements are not likely to cause substantial environmental damage 

or substantially and unavoidably injure fish, wildlife, or their habitat since no stream course or endangered 
wildlife occurs on the property, as determined during the environmental review of the project. 

 
6. The design of the map and the type of improvements are not likely to cause serious public health problems 

since the project will not degrade the levels of service on the adjoining streets or drainage system, and city 
water and sewer are available, and can be provided with minor extension of nearby facilities.   

 
7. The requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act have been met since it was found that the project 

will not have a significant effect on the environment as demonstrated in the Notice of Exemption, issued on 
March 7, 2005, in compliance with CEQA Section 15315, Class 15, “Minor Land Divisions”. 

 
8. All permits and approvals applicable to the proposed map pursuant to the Escondido Zoning Code will be 

obtained prior to the recordation of the map. 
 
  



Case # SUB 17-0012 
PC Date August 8, 2017 
Page 8 

8 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Extension of Time SUB 17-0012; TPM 2004-16 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 
 
Landscaping 
 
1. Prior to occupancy of each dwelling unit, all slope landscaping shall be installed.  All vegetation shall be 

maintained in a flourishing manner, and kept free of all foreign matter, weeds and plant materials not approved 
as part of the landscape plan.  All irrigation shall be maintained in fully operational condition.   

 
2. Five copies of a detailed landscape and irrigation plan(s) shall be submitted prior to issuance of Grading or 

Building Permits, and shall be equivalent to, or superior to, the concept plan attached as an exhibit to the 
satisfaction of the Planning Division.  A plan check fee will be collected at the time of the submittal.  The required 
landscape and irrigation plan(s) shall comply with the provisions, requirements and standards outlined in 
Ordinance 93-12.  The plans shall be prepared by, or under the supervision of, a licensed landscape architect. 

 
3. If the proposed rehabilitated landscaping totals 2,500 SF or more, or new landscaped areas total 500 SF or 

more, a Landscape Documentation Package shall be prepared by, or under the supervision of, a licensed 
design professional and shall conform to the Escondido Zoning Code, Article 62 and the California Department 
of Water Resources Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELO).  The plans shall indicate any 

existing trees or landscaping that is to remain as well as new landscape areas.  
 
4. The installation of the landscaping and irrigation shall be inspected by the project landscape architect upon 

completion.  He/she shall complete a Certificate of Landscape Compliance certifying that the installation is in 
substantial compliance with the approved landscape and irrigation plans and City standards.  The applicant 
shall submit the Certificate of Compliance to the Planning Division and request a final inspection. 

 
5. All manufactured slopes, or slopes cleared of vegetation, shall be landscaped within thirty (30) days of 

completion of rough grading.  If, for whatever reason, it is not practical to install the permanent landscaping, 
then an interim landscaping solution may be acceptable.  The type of plant material, irrigation and the method 
of application shall be to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department and City Engineer. 

 
6. Details of project fencing, including materials and colors, shall be provided on the landscape plans. 

 
7. Prior to recordation of the Final Map, a tree survey shall be submitted to the Planning Division, to determine the 

location of all mature trees (except agricultural trees) on the property and determine how many mature trees 
would be removed as a result of the proposed development.  The landscape design shall include 24”-box size 
trees on a 1:1 ratio to mitigate the removal of each existing mature tree on the site as required by the Tree 
Preservation Ordinance (Ord. 93-11) to the satisfaction of the Planning Division.   Any existing trees to remain 
within the project shall be identified on the landscape and grading plans, noted as “to remain”. 

 
8. The two oak trees on the eastern half of the site are protected and shall remain on the site, and the proposed 

grading design shall incorporate their location.   
 
  



Case # SUB 17-0012 
PC Date August 8, 2017 
Page 9 

9 

 

 
General 
 
1. The developer shall be required to pay all development fees of the City then in effect at the time and in such 

amounts as may prevail when Building Permits are issued, including any applicable citywide facilities fees. 
 
2. All construction and grading shall comply with all applicable requirements of the Escondido Zoning Code and 

requirements of the Planning Division, Engineering Division, Building Division, and Fire Department. 
 
3. If blasting is required, verification of a San Diego County Explosives Permit and a copy of the blaster’s public 

liability insurance policy shall be filed with the Fire Chief and City Engineer prior to any blasting within the City 
of Escondido. 

 
4. The legal description attached to the application has been provided by the applicant and neither the City of 

Escondido nor any of its employees assume responsibility for the accuracy of said legal description. 
 
5. All requirements of the Public Art Partnership Program, Ordinance No. 86-70, shall be satisfied prior to Building 

Permit issuance.  The ordinance requires that a public art fee be added at the time of the Building Permit 
issuance for the purpose of participating in the City Public Art Program.   

 
6. All exterior lighting shall conform to the requirements of Article 35, Outdoor Lighting (Ordinance No. 86-75). 
 
7. An additional fire hydrant may be required in a location approved by the Fire Department, based on the distance 

from each proposed dwelling unit to the existing fire hydrants. 
 
8.   The proposed private access easement shall be a minimum paved width of 28 feet.  Parking is permitted on 

one side only and red curbs and “No Parking, Fire Lane” signs shall be located on the other side and installed 
prior to occupancy of either future dwelling unit, to the satisfaction of the Fire Department.   

 
9.  The design, size and location of the proposed turnaround area on Parcel 3 shall be to the satisfaction of the Fire 

Department and Engineering Division.  No parking will be permitted within the turnaround area. 
 
10.  An easement shall be shown on the Final Map showing that each parcel has a minimum 28-foot-wide easement 

for access from Tulip Street, and is a party to its maintenance.   
 
11. Access for use of heavy fire-fighting equipment, as required by the Fire Marshal, shall be provided to the job 

site at the start of any construction and maintained until all construction is complete.  Also, there shall be no 
stockpiling of combustible materials and no foundation inspections until adequate fire suppression requirements 
are in place to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal. 

 
12. The design of the project shall conform to the exhibits and references in the staff report to the satisfaction of 

the Planning Division. 
 
13. All new utilities shall be underground. 
 
14. Prior to approval of the final map, the applicant shall submit two copies of a map exhibiting the entire subdivision 

on one page and drawn to a scale of 1 inch = 200 inches to the Planning Division.  This map shall show all lot 
lines, public and private streets, and conservation easements.  Road or access easements shall be depicted 
with a dashed line. 

 
15. All project-generated noise shall comply with the City’s Noise Ordinance (Ord. 90-08) to the satisfaction of the 

Planning Division. 

 
 
 



Case # SUB 17-0012 
PC Date August 8, 2017 
Page 10 

10 

 

 
16. Three copies of a revised Tentative Map, reflecting all modifications and any required changes shall be 

submitted to the Planning Division for certification prior to submittal of grading and building plans and the final 
map. 

 
17. All habitable buildings shall be noise-insulated to maintain interior noise levels not exceeding 45 dBA or less.  

Prior to issuance of building permits, an acoustical study shall be submitted for the project to demonstrate 
compliance with the City’s noise standards for usable outdoor areas and indoor noise levels.   Rear yard noise 
levels of between 60 dB and 65 dB shall be maintained.  The findings of the acoustical analysis (including height 
and location of necessary noise walls along Tulip Street or Valley Parkway) shall be incorporated into the 
building plans for the affected units, and any noise attenuation walls shall be installed prior to occupancy of the 
homes, and indicated on the grading plans. 

 
18. No exemptions from the Grading Ordinance are approved as part of this project.  All proposed grading shall 

conform with the conceptual grading as shown on the Tentative Map. 
 
19. This CUP and Administrative Adjustment shall remain valid for the effective life of the associated Tentative 

Parcel Map.   
  
20. Prior to recordation of the final map, two copies of the CC&Rs shall be submitted to the Planning Division for 

review and approval.  The CC&Rs shall contain provisions for the maintenance of any common landscaping, 
fencing, walls, the access easement, utility and drainage easements, etc., to the satisfaction of the Planning 
Division. 

 
21.  All lots shall meet the average width and lot area requirements of the R-1-10 zone (the access easement shall 

not be counted towards the minimum lot size).  Conformance with these requirements shall be demonstrated 
on the revised Tentative Map submitted for certification, the grading plans and the Final Map.  Non-compliance 
with these minimum standards will result in revisions to the map.   

 
22. Setbacks for any future construction on any parcel shall be measured from the edge of the private road 

easement. 
 
23. The stable located on the future Parcel 3 shall be demolished or relocated prior to approval of a Final Map.   
 
24. Prior to approval of a Final Map, a Road Maintenance Agreement between the three future property owners for 

the easement access shall be submitted and approved by the Planning Division.  
 
25. The proposed design and materials for the future garage on Parcel 2 shall be compatible with the existing 

historic residence on the site, to the satisfaction of the Planning Division.    

  



Case # SUB 17-0012 
PC Date August 8, 2017 
Page 11 

11 

 

ENGINEERING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
ESCONDIDO TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP No. 2004-16 

(SUB 17-0012) 
121 N. Tulip Street 

GENERAL   

1. The applicant shall provide the City Engineering Dept. with a Parcel Map Guarantee and Title Report covering 
subject property. 

2. The location of all on-site utilities shall be determined by the Engineer.  If a conflict occurs with proposed lots, 
these utilities shall be relocated. 

3. The engineer shall submit to the Planning Department a copy of the Tentative Parcel Map as presented to the 
Planning Commission.  The Tentative Parcel Map shall be signed by the Planning Department verifying that it 
is an accurate reproduction of the approved Tentative Parcel Map with any changes as required by the 
Planning Commission.   A copy of this Certified Tentative Parcel Map must be included in the first submittal for 
plan check to the Engineering Department. 

4. As surety for the construction of required off-site and/or on-site improvements, bonds and agreements in a 
form acceptable to the City Attorney shall be posted by the developer with the City of Escondido prior to the 
recordation of the Final Parcel Map. 

5. No Grading or Building Permits shall be issued for any construction within this Subdivision until the Final Parcel 
Map is recorded and either: 

a) All conditions of the Tentative Parcel Map have been fulfilled: or 

b) Those conditions unfulfilled at the time of an application for Building Permits shall be secured and 
agreements executed in a form and manner satisfactory to the City Attorney and City Engineer. 

6. If site conditions change adjacent to the proposed development prior to completion of the project, the developer 
will be responsible to modify his/her improvements to accommodate these changes.  The determination and 
extent of the modification shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

7. All public improvements shall be constructed in a manner that does not damage existing public improvements.  
Any damage shall be determined by and corrected to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

STREET IMPROVEMENTS AND TRAFFIC 

1. Public street improvements shall be constructed to City Standards as required by the Subdivision Ordinance 
in effect at the time of the Tentative Map approval and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Specific details, 
including final street improvement widths, right-of-way widths, concrete curb and gutters, drainage, lighting, 
etc. shall be resolved to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.   

2. The developer shall construct street improvements, including but not limited to, concrete curb, gutter, sidewalk, 
street lights, street trees, paving and base on the following streets within and adjoining the project boundary: 

STREET CLASSIFICATION 

Tulip Street  Local Collector 

See appropriate typical sections in the current Escondido Design Standards for additional details. 

 

 



Case # SUB 17-0012 
PC Date August 8, 2017 
Page 12 

12 

 

 

3. Access to this project off of Tulip Street shall be improved with an Alley-type driveway apron in accordance 
with Escondido Standard Drawing G-5-E with a minimum throat width of 28 feet. 

4. The address of each building/dwelling unit shall be posted in such a manner that the address is visible from 
the street.  In both cases, the address shall be placed in a manner and location approved by the City Engineer 
and the Fire Marshal. 

5. The private access road shown on the Tentative Parcel Map shall be Improved to a Minimum width of 28 feet 
with a 5-foot walkway along one side. Plans for said road easement shall be submitted to and approved by the 
City Engineer prior to recordation of the Final Map. 

6. Private roads shall include provisions for maintenance by owners of appurtenant parcels. A Declaration of 
Restrictions shall be filed with the County Recorder prior to recordation of the final Parcel Map. A note to this 
effect along with the recording data of Declaration of Restrictions shall be shown on the final Parcel Map.  

7. The developer will be required to provide a detailed detour and traffic control plan, for all construction within 
the public right-of-way, to the satisfaction of the Traffic Engineer and the Field Engineer.  This plan shall be 
approved prior to issuance of an Encroachment Permit for work in the public right-of-way   

8. The developers engineer shall prepare a complete signing and striping plan for all improved roadways. Any 
removal of existing striping and all new signage and striping shall be done by a private contractor 

9. The developer may be responsible for an overlay of Tulip Street due to the many utility trenches necessary to 
serve this project. The determination of the extent of the overlay shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

10. Adequate horizontal sight distance shall be provided at all street intersections. Increased parkways widths, 
open space easements and restrictions on landscaping may be required at the discretion of the City Engineer. 

11. The developer shall be required to install a street light in accordance with Escondido Standard Drawing E-1-E 
at the project entrance on Tulip Street. 

GRADING 

1. A site grading and erosion control plan shall be approved by the Engineering Department.  The first submittal 
of the grading plan shall be accompanied by 3 copies of the preliminary soils and geotechnical report.  The 
soils engineer will be required to indicate in the soils report that he/she has reviewed the grading design and 
found it to be in conformance with his/her recommendations. 

2. Erosion control, including riprap, interim slope planting, sandbags, or other erosion control measures shall be 
provided to prevent sediment and silt from leaving the project.  The developer shall be responsible for 
maintaining all erosion control facilities throughout the project. 

3. The developer shall be responsible for the recycling of all excavated materials designated as Industrial 
Recyclables (soil, asphalt, sand, concrete, land clearing brush and rock) at a recycling center or other 
location(s) approved by the City Engineer. 

4. A General Construction Activity Permit is required from the State Water Resources Board for all storm water 
discharges associated with a construction activity where clearing, grading and excavation results in a land 
disturbance of five (5) or more acres 

5. All blasting operations performed in connection with the improvement of the project shall conform to the City 
of Escondido Blasting Operations Ordinance. 



Case # SUB 17-0012 
PC Date August 8, 2017 
Page 13 

13 

 

 

6. All existing foundations and structures, other than those designated “to remain” on the Tentative Parcel Map, 
shall be removed or demolished from the site.  These removals shall be completed prior to Parcel Map 
recordation. 

7. All driveway grades shall conform to current Escondido Design Standards and Escondido Standard Drawings. 

8. All lot lines shall be located at the top of slope unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. Unless 
specifically permitted to remain by the County Health Department, all existing wells within the project shall be 
abandoned and capped, and all existing septic tanks shall be pumped and backfilled, per the San Diego County 
Health Department Requirements.  These well and septic tank abandonments shall be completed prior to 
Parcel Map recordation. 

9. The developer will be required to obtain permission from adjoining property owners for any off-site grading and 
slopes necessary to construct the project and/or the required improvements. 

DRAINAGE 

1. A Final Storm Water Quality Management Plan(SWQMP) in compliance with City’s latest adopted Storm Water 
Standards (2015 BMP Manual) shall be prepared for all onsite and newly created impervious frontage and 
required offsite improvements and submitted for approval together with the final improvement and grading 
plans. The Storm Water Quality Management Plan shall include hydro-modification calculations, treatment 
calculations, post construction storm water treatment measures and maintenance requirements. 

2. All site drainage with emphasis on the parking and drive way areas shall be treated to remove expected 
contaminants using a high efficiency non-mechanical method of treatment.   The City highly encourages the 
use of bio-retention areas as the primary method of storm water retention and treatment.   The landscape 
plans will need to reflect these areas of storm water treatment. 

3. All onsite storm drains, storm water storage facilities and bio-retention basins constructed with this project 
shall be considered private.  The responsibility for maintenance of these storm drains and all post construction 
storm water treatment facilities shall be that of the property owner.  

4. The Developer will be required to submit a signed, notarized and recorded copy of Storm Water Control Facility 
Maintenance Agreement to the City Engineer. The maintenance agreement shall indicate property owner’s 
responsibility for maintenance of all proposed frontage Green Street landscaping, onsite drainage system, 
storm water treatment and hydro-modification facilities and their drainage systems.  

WATER SUPPLY 

1. If fire sprinklers are required by the Fire Department, a 1” minimum water service, 1” water meter, and back 
flow prevention device shall be required for each lot.  Water meters and back flow prevention devices shall not 
be installed within the driveway apron or private drive areas.  All water services shall be to the satisfaction of 
the Utilities Engineer.  

2. All on-site water lines and backflow prevention devices beyond the City water meter will be considered a 
private water system.  The property owner will be responsible for all maintenance of these water lines and 
backflow prevention devices. 

3. No trees or deep rooted plants shall be planted within 10 feet of any water service. 

4. All water services shall be installed per current City of Escondido Design Standards and Standard Drawings. 



Case # SUB 17-0012 
PC Date August 8, 2017 
Page 14 

14 

 

 

SEWER 

1. A private 4” minimum PVC sewer lateral with a standard clean-out within 18” of the right-of way shall be 
constructed for each Parcel and shown on the Improvement and Grading plans.  All sewer laterals shall be 
constructed per current City of Escondido Design Standards and Standard Drawings.  The sewer lateral for 
Parcel 2 shall be constructed beyond the required private drive paving.  The construction of all sewer laterals 
shall be included in the improvement plans and bonding quantities. 

2. The existing house on Parcel 2 shall be verified to be connected to City Sewer prior to Parcel Map recordation. 

3. No trees or deep rooted bushes shall be planted within 10’ of any sewer lateral. 

4. All sewer laterals will be considered a private sewer system.  The property owners will be responsible for all 
maintenance of their individual sewer laterals to the sewer main in Miller Avenue. 

 
FINAL PARCEL MAP - EASEMENTS AND DEDICATIONS 

1. The developer shall make all necessary dedications for public rights-of-way on the following streets contiguous 
to the project to bring the roadways to the indicated classification. 

STREET CLASSIFICATION         

Tulip Street  Local Collector 

2. All easements, both private and public, affecting subject property shall be either delineated on the Final Parcel 
Map or noted for extinguishment on same. 

3. Public Emergency Access Easements as required by the Fire Marshal shall be granted to the City on the Final 
Parcel Map and shown on the improvement and grading plans. 

CASH SECURITY AND FEES 

1. A cash security shall be posted to pay any costs incurred by the City to clean-up eroded soils and debris, 
repair damage to public or private property and improvements, install new BMPs, and stabilize and/or close-
up a non-responsive or abandoned project.  Any moneys used by the City for cleanup or damage will be drawn 
from this security and the grading permit will be revoked by written notice to the developer until the required 
cash security is replaced. The cleanup cash security shall be released upon final acceptance of the grading 
and improvements for this project. The amount of the cash security shall be 10% of the total estimated cost of 
the grading, drainage, landscaping, and best management practices items of work with a minimum of $5,000 
up to a maximum of $30,000, unless a higher amount is deemed necessary by the Director of Engineering 
Services. 

2. The developer will be required to pay all development fees of the City then in effect at the time, and in such 
amounts as may prevail when building permits are issued. 

DECLARATION of RESTRICTIONS  

1. Copies of the Declaration of Restrictions shall be submitted to the Engineering Department and Planning 
Department for approval prior to approval of the Final Parcel Map. 

 

 



Case # SUB 17-0012 
PC Date August 8, 2017 
Page 15 

15 

 

 

2. The developer shall make provisions in the Declaration of Restrictions for maintenance by the homeowners of 
private roadways, driveways, parking areas, fencing, private utilities (including sewer and water), drainage and 
storm water treatment facilities, storm drains and landscaping along Tulip St.  These provisions must be 
approved by the Engineering Department prior to approval of the Final Parcel Map. 

UTILITY UNDERGROUNDING AND RELOCATION    

1. All existing overhead utilities within the subdivision boundary or along fronting streets shall be relocated 
underground as required by the City’s Overhead Utility Undergrounding Ordinance.  The developer may 
request a waiver of this condition by writing a letter to the City Engineer explaining his/her reasons for 
requesting the waiver.  The developer will be required to pay a waiver fee as currently adopted by City Council. 

2. The developer shall sign a written agreement stating that he has made all such arrangements as may be 
necessary to coordinate and provide utility construction, relocation and undergrounding.  All new utilities shall 
be constructed underground.  


	PA 080817.pdf
	PC Minutes 07.11.17 DRAFT.pdf
	PHG 15-0013 continuation memo 08.08.17.pdf
	PHG 17-0006 St. Mary;s Preschool Modif. CUP 08.08.17.pdf
	SUB 17-0012 TPM EOT 121 N Tulip 08.08.17.pdf

